
           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  tthhee  WWhhoollee  ––  66::3300  pp..mm..    

RReegguullaarr  CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  MMeeeettiinngg  ––  77::0000  pp..mm..    
 

  

 CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMBBEERRSS              MMAAYYOORR 
  Richard Holm -Alt. Dep. Mayor Pro Tem    488-1776 Bryce Ward – 488-7314  

  Sharron Hunter-Mayor Pro Tem  488-4282                 

    Thomas McGhee             455-0010 

  Derrick Nelson             378-8207  

  Michelle Sikma -Dep. Mayor Pro Tem 378-5778 

  Preston Smith     488-8824   

          CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK 

                Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583   

 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag –  
 

3. Invocation   
  

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 

5. Approval of the Minutes  

  

6. Communications from the Mayor 

 

 Students of the Month 

Kelsey Nore 

  

7.      Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

8.      Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 

         Clerk  

 

 

CCIITTYY  OOFF  NNOORRTTHH  PPOOLLEE  

AAllaasskkaa  
 o 

RREEGGUULLAARR  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEEETTIINNGG    

MMoonnddaayy,,  MMaarrcchh  1188,,  22001133  
 

 

  

  

  

  



 

9.      Ongoing Projects Report 

 Startup Weekend – Sharron Hunter 

 
 

10.    Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

11.    Old Business 

a.   Ordinance 13-03, An Ordinance Amending Title 5 And Introducing Chapter 5.13, Made 

In North Pole, Alaska Trademark 

 

12.   New Business 

a.   Request from Christmas in Ice for 4
th

 Quarter 2012 and 1
st
 Quarter 2013 Bed Tax. 

    

b.  Resolution 13-06 A Resolution to Accept a State of Alaska Municipal Matching Grant in 

the Amount t of $1,075,140 For The Rehabilitation of the Waste Water Treatment Plant 

 

13.    Council Comments 

 

14.    Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing 

impaired individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours notice to arrange for this 

service.  All such requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council 

meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City 

Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125 

Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.  



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

1 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, March 4, 2013 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, March 4, 2013 to order at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Mr. Holm       

Ms. Hunter           

Mr. McGhee       

Mr. Nelson      Excused     

Ms. Sikma 

Mr. Smith         

Mayor Ward      

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Ward 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Councilwoman Sikma 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of March 4, 2013 

 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to consent the following items on the agenda: 

 

New  Business 

a. Liquor License Renewal for 2 Go Mart #112, Tesoro Northstore Company 

b. Amend Appointment of Committee Membership/Finance Audit Committee, to include 

Councilwoman Michelle Sikma 
 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

2 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

PASSED 

YES:  7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, McGhee, Nelson, Ward 

NO:  0 

Absent:  0 

 

On the main motion as amended 

 

PASSED 

YES:  7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, McGhee, Nelson, Ward 

NO:  0 

Absent:  0 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Mr. Holm moved to approve the minutes of February 19, 2013 

 

Seconded by Mr. Nelson 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

YES:  7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, McGhee, Nelson, Ward 

NO:  0 

Absent:  0 

 

  

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

Mayor Ward updated council on the following items: 

 Attended Tiger Team and Fairbanks Chamber meetings with Senator Murkowski and 

listened to the effects of sequestration. 

 Was asked to be on the ARRC strategic playing board.   

 Had a presentation by AIDA at City Hall on the trucking of natural gas from the North 

Slope. 

 IFSS is going on now and the mayor attended opening ceremonies at Pikes and welcomed 

the mushers.  Events will be going on in Salcha, North Pole, and Fairbanks. 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

Mr. Smith asked about the new Smart 911 and the funding for the program. 

 

Mayor Ward said he thought it was funded through the borough by a grant. 

 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

3 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Police Department, Chief Dutra 

 None 

 

Fire Department, Chief Lane 

 Reminded council about the St. Baldericks Foundation 9
th

 Annual fundraiser to be held at 

Pioneer Park Exhibit Hall on Saturday, March 16, 2013 at 6pm.  The is to raise money to 

fight childhood cancer .  For more information contact Justin Boddy at 322-2232 or go to 

the website www.stbaldricks.org.  

 Bill Schekter, former borough Fire Chief died this past week from a stroke.  His services 

will be held at Sacred Hearth Catholic Church on Saturday, March 9
th

.  NPFD will 

participate 

 Engine 24 had been down for some time and is now back in service, thanks to Capt. Chad 

Heineken who did the work on the engine. 

 Nixel is a new form of social media for emergency measures.  Chief Lane attended classes 

for social media communications ie. Nixle, Twitter, and Facebook.  You can find out 

quicker in Twitter than you can in the news.   

 Chief Lane would like the Council to weigh in on Title 17, which deals with roads in the 

borough and some on the borough assembly are trying to get rid of it.  If you have a 

subdivision and want to subdivide, this would allow developers to not need to go through 

the borough to build roads to their specs.  He felt the city should look at that and weigh in 

on it.  He gave an example of going in to a fire and the truck being buried to the axles 

because the road wasn’t maintained.   

  

Mr. McGhee commented that he has been using Nixle for over a year and is very impressed with 

it. 

 

Mr. Smith also commented on it. 

 

 

Accountant, Lisa Vaughn 

 None 

 

 

Utility & Public Works 

 

Building Department 

One commercial permit-additional renovations at the Safeway Pharmacy 

Plans appear to still be on track for North Pole Library construction in 2013 

Borough has released a request for bids for roof repairs at the middle school for construction 

in 2013 

 

 

http://www.stbaldricks.org/


Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

4 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

Public Works 

Public Works staff are building planters and benches—a cost savings versus buying from 

manufacture 

Senior Center project was completed in the middle of February with installation of propane 

tank heating blanket 

DOT released a request for bids for 8th Avenue paving project with required paving to be 

completed by October 2013 

This summer should be a busy public works construction season: road repaving, pedestrian 

path paving & bus shelter (see attached site maps and drawing) 

8th Avenue 

5th Avenue 

Pedestrian connections project 

Additional road paving 

Santa Claus Lane bus shelter 

 

 

 

Utility Department 

Utility annual report distributed in utility bills (copy attached). 

Summarizes significant developments during 2012. 

Goal is to help utility customers to better understand the utility. 

Received grant award for waste water treatment plant renovations. 

Received too late to bring resolution to Council for approval at this meeting. 

Award: $1,075,140. 

Funds for award drawn from a 2011 state appropriation to the City (balance in award is 

$663,378 that plan to apply to additional waste water treatment plant renovations). 

Lift station project is completed with installation of electronic control upgrades (Change 

Order #2). 

Will request ~$45,000 in unspent funds be transferred to waste water treatment plant to help 

fund the plant’s lift station. 

 

 

Natural Gas Utility Board 

On February 27, two board members made a presentation to Alaska Regulatory Commission 

proposing a service area--includes areas of Borough outside of Fairbanks Natural Gas’s 

current service area. 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

5 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

 
 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

6 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

7 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

 

 

 
 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

8 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

Borough Representative 

 None 

 

 

City Clerk  

 Senior Luncheon has been canceled for this year. 

 PFD deadline is March 31
st
.   

 Mayor’s Art show will not happen this year.  I am working with Mr. Hansen from NPMS 

to make sure this comes off next year in February. 

 Seniors will be coming over to City Hall on Wednesday, March 6
th

.  They also plan to 

visit the Police, Fire, Public Works, and Utility Departments.  

 Reminder to have your APOC form in to me by March 15, 2013 to avoid any fines. 

 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
 None 

 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS – 5 Minutes 

 None 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
None 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

APPROVAL OF COUNCIL TO HIRE NPFD PERSONNEL AT RANGE 6 ON THE PAY 

SCALE 

Chief Lane updated council on the need to hire Fire Department personnel at range 6 on the pay 

scale and that they have been doing this for the past 5 years.   

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the North Pole Fire Department to Hire Personnel At Range 6 On 

The Pay Scale 

 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

Discussion 

 

Mr. Holm asked if there was the ability to hire on the pay scale due to experience and that he felt this 

should not be decided by council and that we don’t set a precedent until council looks at the salary 

schedule and fixes it. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

9 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

 

Mayor Ward asked the clerk to read the portion in the NPMC that deals with hiring new employees. 

4.36.470 Pay 

G.  Newly hired employees shall be employed at the starting rate of the appropriate salary range. 

However, in the case where unusual difficulty has been experienced in filling a vacancy, or when the 

applicant is exceptionally qualified, on approval of Council the Mayor may direct the starting salary 

above the minimum. Credit for prior years of similar service may be granted at the rate of two prior years 

of experience for one horizontal step increment. Employees hired in 1999 to present will be eligible for 

this credit. 

 

Mayor Ward said the issue is that the Fire Departgment has been doing this and they need council 

approval. 

 

Mr. Holm move to amend to read Approve Range 6 On The Pay Scale Recognizing The Level Of 

Experience Of This New Hire. 

 

Seconded by Mr. McGhee 

 

Discussion 

 

Ms. Hunter stated that the reason for this coming before council was due to his experience but because 

this is what fire department personnel were being hire at in the past. 

 

Chief Lane said that this was part of the hiring process.  He stated that this had been going on for the past 

10 years and had been accepted by previous mayors. This person is qualified and his recommendation is 

to hire this person at range 6.  He said that eventually the council will need to go back and adjust the pay 

scale. 

 

Mr. Holm said he brought this up because they need to address the individual and not the pay scale until 

they have an ordinance before them.  He didn’t want to set precedence without debate. 

 

Ms. Hunter said the council is not setting a precedence because it’s been going on for such a long time 

and she felt that she didn’t want to look at individual merit but it wouldn’t be fair to do this at this time.  

She did agree to that they need to put something into code and do revisit it. 

 

Chief Lane said they are setting precedence by bringing it before council and that we are going to follow 

code now.   

 

PASSED 

YES:  7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, McGhee, Nelson, Ward 

NO:  0 

Absent:  0 

 

On the main motion as Amended 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

YES:  7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, McGhee, Nelson, Ward 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

10 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

NO:  0 

Absent:  0 

 

 

ORDINANCE 13-03, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5 AND INTRODUCING 

CHAPTER 5.13, MADE IN NORTH POLE, ALASKA TRADEMARK 

Mayor Ward introduced the ordinance by stating he had been working on this since December.  

He said this is in the same realm as what the State of Alaska does with their “Made in Alaska”.  

The bulk of this code has been taken from the State of Alaska and this will hopefully raise 

revenues for the City of North Pole.  He stated that a cost breakdown has been provided along 

with a projected revenues.  Mayor Ward said that he is hoping to bring in around $4,000 with the 

Trademark. 

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Introduce and Advance Ordinance 13-03, An Ordinance Amending 

Title 5 And Introducing Chapter 5.13, Made In North Pole, Alaska Trademark 

 

Seconded by Ms. Hunter 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee asked about the 99705 and how we would be able to require people outside the city 

limits to purchase a business license. 

 

Mayor Ward stated that this was vetted through our attorney and that anyone wishing to use the 

trademark and logo would be required to purchase a business license before they would be able 

to use the logo. There are boundaries set for the use of the logo.   

 

Ms. Hunter asked about section 5.13.040 Utilization of Emblem- and if the permit holder is 

responsible for getting their own stickers? 

 

Mayor Ward said that was correct and they would be able to get their own labels by getting the 

image from the City or individuals could get their own through a printer. 

 

Ms. Hunter asked if there was a control problem with a rubber stamp after a user’s permit 

expired. 

 

Mayor ward said that this was drafted with state code and there isn’t an issue and is up to the city 

to police it.  The ordinance goes over the penalties of misusing the logo or trademark image. 

 

Mr. Smith said that NPHS has great artists and if this could be put out to the schools or to other 

artists to create an emblem. He thought it would be nice to get the community involved. 

 

Mayor Ward thought it would be better to have a finished product. 

 

Mr. Smith asked about the annual fees for the trademark and business license.   



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

11 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

 

Mayor Ward  

 

Ms. Hunter asked about the product line and wondered if he wanted to improve the definition of 

the product line.  She had wording that she thought might be included in the ordinance. 

 

Mayor Ward stated that it had gone through the attorney and that he didn’t feel that there needed 

to be any changes made to it but Ms. Hunter was free to make any amendments she wanted. 

 

Mr. Holm said he felt Ms. Hunter was correct and he would like to see the product line more 

defined. 

 

Ms. Sikma suggested that there could be better wording in the ordinance concerning the 

original/product line.   

 

Ms. Hunter said she saw the two things as being different and asked how many times you are 

going to pay that fee. 

 

Mayor Ward said it was capped at $100 he didn’t see an issue with it but if they felt there needed 

to be an amendment he encouraged them to do it. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if this could be tabled to the next meeting. 

 

Mr. McGhee said there was no need to table it and they were supposed to be debating now.  He 

asked the council to pass it or make a motion. 

 

Mr. McGhee called the question 

 

PASSED 

YES:  5 – Hunter, Sikma, McGhee, Nelson, Ward 

NO:  2 – Holm, Smith 

Absent:  0 

 

RESOLUTION 13-04, A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING LEGISLATIVE ACTION TO 

APPROVE THE FIVE YEAR ROYALTY OIL CONTRACT BETWEEN FLINT HILLS 

RESOURCES LLC AND THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

DURING THE 28
TH

 LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

Mayor Ward introduced the Resolution.  Shannon Price was in attendance on behalf of Jeff Cook 

from Flint Hills Resources, LLC was in attendance to answer any questions the council may 

have. 

 

Ms. Hunter asked what receiving royalty oil meant to Flint Hills, LLC. 

 

Mr. Price said that royalty oil is the only oil that Flint Hills receives and that they wouldn’t get 

any oil if this Resolution doesn’t pass.   

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

12 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

Mayor Ward explained that the state receives 12.5 % of all the oil produced on the North Slope.  

Of the 12.5% the state can resell on the private market.  The state is in negotiation with Flint 

Hills for the sale of this oil. 

 

Mr. Holm asked if there had been any opposition to this resolution. 

 

Mr. Price said they’ve had very good support from the interior delegation. 

 

Mr. McGhee asked how much they pay for royalty oil.   

 

Mr. Price said he didn’t have that information but would get it and report back to council if they 

would like. 

 

Mr. McGhee asked if there was any other company they could purchase oil from other that the 

State of Alaska. 

 

Mr. Price stated that Flint Hills is not interested in the small purchase that they would be able to 

make from other companies. 

 

Ms. Sikma asked if there were any major changes from the old contract to the new.   

 

Mr. Price said conditions to this contract is that it lets them be more competitive. 

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve Resolution 13-04, A Resolution Supporting Legislative 

Action To Approve The Five Year Royalty Oil Contract Between Flint Hills Resources Llc 

And The Alaska Department Of Natural Resources During The 28
th

 Legislative Session 

 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

Discussion 
None 

 

PASSED 

YES:  7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, McGhee, Nelson, Ward 

NO:  0 

Absent:  0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

13 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

RESOLUTION 13-05, A RESOLUTION OPPOSING HOUSE BILL 3, “AN ACT 

RELATING TO VOTER IDENTIFICATION AT THE POLLS; AND RELATING TO 

THE COUNTING OF ABSENTEE AND QUESTIONED BALLOTS” AND URGING 

THE STATE OF ALASKA LEGISLATURE TO RETAIN THE CURRENT LIST OF 

ACCEPTABLE FORMS OF VOTER IDENTIFICATION LISTED IN AS 15.15.225 AND 

6 AAC 25. 

Mrs. Weber introduced this resolution to council.  She explained that this would largely impact 

rural communities where there is usually only one election official at the polls.  There could also 

be issues with rural communities where some of the residents wouldn’t have access to photo 

identification. 

 
Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Introduce and Adopt Resolution 13-05, A Resolution Opposing 

House Bill 3, “An Act Relating To Voter Identification At The Polls; And Relating To The 

Counting Of Absentee And Questioned Ballots” And Urging The State Of Alaska 

Legislature To Retain The Current List Of Acceptable Forms Of Voter Identification 

Listed In As 15.15.225 And 6 AAC 25. 

 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee said that Mrs. Weber was wrong as 2 of the board of elections has the right approve 

the voter.  He stated that photo ID is a way of protecting against voting fraud.  He said that he 

has all kinds of photo ID and the natives that he deals with have photo ID and would not vote for 

this resolution. 

 

Mr. Smith said that there was something in the news about someone in Alaska voting 3 times. 

 

Mr. Holm said he felt the same way as Mr. McGhee and would vote against it.  He said the time 

has come when people need to have photo ID to vote, buy a gun, drive a vehicle, etc.  He did not 

feel it was discriminatory. 

 

Ms. Hunter said the right to vote is the very foundation of our democracy and didn’t feel that we 

should be doing anything to infringe on that.  She didn’t see fraud being a broad problem and 

that if it was we would be hearing from the City Clerks.  She said she would support the clerks 

and her constitutional right. 

 

Mr. Nelson asked if this was only local or regional.  He would vote in favor of it and didn’t feel 

it was necessary to bring this forward. 

 

PASSED 

YES:  4 – Smith, Sikma, Hunter, Nelson 

NO:  3 - McGhee, Holm, Ward 

Absent:  0 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

14 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  March 4, 2013 

 

 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Ms. Hunter – was glad to see there was someone at the meeting tonight.  She thanked Ms. Cork 

for coming tonight. 

 

Ms. Sikma – was glad to see warmer weather and encouraged everyone to go out and take part 

in the IFSS this next week. 

 

Mr. Holm – no comment 

 

Mr. Smith – informed the council that next week is daylight saving time and to change smoke 

detector batteries. 

 

Mr. Nelson – encouraged everyone to be careful as the roads are slippery. 

 

Mr. McGhee – he echoed Mr. Nelsons comments and was nice to see Ms. Cork 

 

Mayor Ward – echoed comments and thanked council for their participation. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee adjourned the meeting at 8: 35 p.m.  

 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

The regular meeting of March 4, 2013 adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, March 18, 2013. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

             

                          

 

_________________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 































































1 

 

 By: Mayor Ward 1 
 Introduced & Advanced:  March 4, 2013  2 

 Possible Adoption:  March 18, 2013 3 

  4 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 5 

 6 

 ORDINANCE 13-03  7 

 8 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5 AND INTRODUCING CHAPTER 5.13,  9 

MADE IN NORTH POLE, ALASKA TRADEMARK 10 

 11 

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 12 

and 13 

 14 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 15 

requirements of the City and to clarify questionable areas; and 16 

 17 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole wishes to promote the local businesses and the uniqueness 18 

of North Pole. 19 

 20 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Pole: 21 

 Section 1.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 22 

 23 

 Section 2.  Chapter 5, Section 5.13 Made in North Pole Trademark is introduced in the 24 

North Pole Code of ordinances as follows: 25 

 26 

Title 5 27 

      Chapter 5.13  28 

Made in North Pole Trademark 29 

Sections: 30 

5.13.010 Purpose and Intent 31 

5.13.020 Administration of Chapter 32 

5.13.030 Design of Made in North Pole emblem 33 

5.13.040 Utilization of Made in North Pole emblem 34 

5.13.050 Eligibility, Permit holder requirements 35 

5.13.060 Prohibited conduct 36 

5.13.070 Penalties 37 

5.13.080 Severability 38 

5.13.090 Definitions  39 

 40 

5.13.010  Purpose and Intent 41 

The purpose and intent of the Made in North Pole Program is to validate items made in North 42 

Pole, raise revenues, encourage local manufacturing and economic development and promote the 43 

uniqueness of the City of North Pole.   44 

 45 

5.13.020  Administration of chapter 46 

A. The City Of North Pole herby creates a Made in North Pole Program. 47 



2 

 

1. The City of North Pole reserves all rights and privileges to the Made in North Pole 48 

emblem as outlined and approved by the North Pole City Council.   49 

B. The Mayor of the City of North Pole is responsible for management and administration of the 50 

provisions relating to the Made in North Pole emblem, including; 51 

1.  The supervision of the use of the emblem; 52 

2.  The design, issuance, and control of emblem; 53 

3.  The enforcement of North Pole Code 5.13.060 regarding the use of the emblem. 54 

 55 

C.  The North Pole City Council shall establish forms and fees for the applications and permits to 56 

be used or issued under this section, the period for which the permits are valid, and the 57 

procedures for renewing the permits. 58 

 59 

D. The City of North Pole is responsible for maintaining the rights and privileges associated with 60 

the Made In North Pole Program. 61 

 62 

5.13.030  Design of Make in North Pole emblem 63 

The official emblem for an article that is made in the North Pole area is a design approved by the 64 

North Pole City Council, that depicts A candy cane lined pole with a sign suspended from the 65 

side with the wording "Made in North Pole." 66 

 67 

5.13.040 Utilization of Made in North Pole emblem 68 

A.  The permit holder may obtain MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblems from sources 69 

that conform to the requirements of chapter 5.13 of the North Pole Code. The representation of 70 

the emblem may be in the form of tags, stickers, rubber-stamps, etc. 71 

B.  A permit holder may use a representation of that emblem on labels, letterheads, business 72 

cards, in-store and other advertising, and for other similar purposes. 73 

C.  The MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem or a representation of that emblem may 74 

not be sold as art or as a dominant feature of a product logo or label unless approved by the 75 

Mayor or North Pole agent in writing and adhere to the Made in North Pole Permit Process 76 

Policy #13-01. 77 

D. A person may use the MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem to identify an article that 78 

is made in the North Pole Area. The emblem may not be used to identify an article made outside 79 

the North Pole Area. 80 

E. The MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem may only be used after paying all fees and 81 

receiving a use permit from North Pole City Hall.  A person may report alleged violations of the 82 

MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem to the Mayor or the North Pole City Council.  83 

5.13.050  Eligibility—Permit holder requirements 84 

A.  A permit to use the MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem will be issued to an 85 

applicant who:  86 

1. locates and maintains the handicraft or product making or manufacturing operation with 87 

the North Pole Area as defined in North Pole Code 5.13.90; or 88 



3 

 

2. produces a handicraft or a product in the State of Alaska and value-added processes were 89 

accomplished in the North Pole Area; or 90 

3. uses North Pole Area resources and materials in the manufacturing or production of the 91 

product or handicraft; and 92 

4. has a current Alaska business license if required by AS 43.70; and 93 

5. has a current North Pole City Business license as required by North Pole Code 5.02.020 ; 94 

and 95 

6. submits a completed application and the required annual fees; and 96 

7. permits the inspection of the production or manufacturing site by the Mayor or a City of 97 

North Pole agent; and 98 

8. Complies with the requirements of North Pole Code Chapter 5.13. 99 

B.  A finished product that is only partially manufactured within the North Pole Area may be 100 

authorized to use the MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem if: 101 

1. the producer demonstrates that no manufacturing facility exists in the North Pole Area 102 

with the capacity or expertise to do the work being accomplished outside the North Pole 103 

Area; the Mayor or City of North Pole agent will not consider cost alone as a valid 104 

justification for using out-of-North Pole manufacturing facilities; and  105 

2. The majority of the value-added processes are accomplished in the North Pole Area. 106 

C.  The printing industry is not eligible for a permit to use the MADE IN NORTH POLE 107 

ALASKA emblem for routine printing projects that involve printing or duplication or items or 108 

writings not created by the printer in the North Pole Area. 109 

5.13.060 Prohibited conduct 110 

A.  An individual or business may not; 111 

a. knowingly or willfully alter, change, or counterfeit the MADE IN NORTH POLE 112 

ALASKA emblem. 113 

b.  knowingly or willfully sell, or offer to sell an article that is not made in the North 114 

     Pole Area but bears the MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem.  115 

c.  knowingly or willfully use the emblem for an article that is not made in the North 116 

     Pole Area. 117 

d.  Use the emblem authorized under this section in any fashion without paying all 118 

     fees and receiving a MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA permit from North Pole City 119 

Hall. 120 

5.13.070  Penalties 121 

Penalties for the misuse of the MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem seal are as follows:  122 

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/cgi-bin/folioisa.dll/stattx06?


4 

 

A.   A person who knowingly or willfully alters, changes, or counterfeits the MADE IN NORTH 123 

POLE ALASKA emblem is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  124 

 125 

B.  A person who knowingly or willfully sells, or offers to sell and article that is not made in the 126 

North Pole Area but bears the MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem is guilty of a Class 127 

B misdemeanor.  128 

C.  A person who knowingly or willfully uses the MADE IN NORTH POLE emblem for an 129 

article that is not made in the North Pole Area is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  130 

D.  A agent who has been authorized to issue a MADE IN NORTH POLE use permit under 131 

North Pole Code Chapter 5.13 is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor if the person knowingly or 132 

willfully issues a permit for an article that is not made in the North Pole Area. 133 

E.  A person who uses the MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem without obtaining a use 134 

permit and paying all applicable fees is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.   135 

5.13.080 No cause of action against the City 136 

Any failure on the part of the City of North Pole to follow the provisions of the section shall not: 137 

1.    Waive any rights of the City of North Pole; 138 

2.    Give rise to any cause of action on behalf of the permit applicant or holder against 139 

       the City of North Pole. 140 

5.13.090  Severability 141 

If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter is held to be 142 

unconstitutional or in violation of law, then that holding shall not affect the validity of the 143 

remainder of this chapter. 144 

5.13.100  Definitions 145 

“North Pole Agent” is a City staff member or council member given written authority to act as a 146 

administrative assistant for the Made In North Pole Program by the Mayor.   147 

“North Pole Area”: means , all of the incorporated City of North Pole, all land from the Moose 148 

Creek Dam to the Chena River following the Chena River North To where it intersects with the 149 

back side of Fort Wainwright bordering the Fairbanks City Line to the Tanana River Dike and.  150 

following the Tanana Rover Dike south to where it intersects with the Moose Creek Dam.   151 

"Mayor" means chief administrative official of the city of North Pole or the mayor’s designee. 152 

“ Emblem" means the MADE IN NORTH POLE ALASKA emblem outlined in this section; 153 

"knowingly" or “willfully” means with respect to conduct or to a circumstance described by a 154 

provision of law defining an offense when the person is aware that the conduct is of that nature 155 

or that the circumstance exists; when knowledge of the existence of a particular fact is an 156 

element of an offense, that knowledge is established if a person is aware of a substantial 157 

probability of its existence, unless the person actually believes it does not exist; a person who is 158 

unaware of conduct or a circumstance of which the person would have been aware had that 159 

person not been intoxicated acts knowingly with respect to that conduct or circumstance; 160 



5 

 

"original" means new, unique, not a reproduction, and created or crafted by one person without 161 

the use of mechanized duplication instruments, electronic duplication instruments, or other 162 

devices or systems for copying large numbers of articles, except that "original" includes etched 163 

prints, lithographic prints, serigraphic prints, and prints from photographs, if the prints are made 164 

by hand by the person who created or crafted the etched plate, etched drawing, etched design, 165 

lithographic plate, lithographic stone, silkscreen, or photograph from which the prints were 166 

made; 167 

"work of art" means a creation or crafting of: 168 

        1.  a visual article, including a painting, a sculpture, a drawing, a mosaic, a 169 

             photograph, an etching, a lithograph, and a serigraph; or 170 

        2.  calligraphy; or 171 

        3.  clay, textile, fiber, wood, metal, plastic, or glass, or a combination of these 172 

             materials; or 173 

        4.  traditional Alaska Native materials, including ivory, bone, grass, baleen, animal 174 

             skins, wood, or furs; or 175 

        5.  a collage or combination of two or more of the categories identified in 1 - 4 of 176 

             this paragraph. 177 

 178 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 pm on the first City 179 

business day following its adoption. 180 

 181 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 182 

18
th

  day of March, 2013. 183 

 184 

 185 

______________________________ 186 

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 187 

ATTEST: 188 

 189 

 190 

 191 

 192 

______________________________ 193 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 194 

North Pole City Clerk 195 

 196 

PASSED/FAILED 197 

YES 198 

NO 199 

Absent 200 











Sponsored by: Mayor Ward 

 Introduced and Adopted: March 18, 2013 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 

 2 

RESOLUTION 13-06 3 

 4 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO FORMALLY ACCEPT A 5 

MUNICIPAL MATCHING GRANT FROM THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF 6 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,075,140 FOR THE 7 

TREATMENT PLANT REHABILITATION PROJECT  8 
 9 

WHEREAS, the City’s waste water treatment plant (WWTP) is in need of rehabilitation to 10 

ensure safe and efficient operation of the plant and to permit expansion of the facility’s capacity 11 

to support growth of the community, and 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, the City received grants from the state and federal government to assess the 14 

condition of the WWTP, propose needed renovations and to design the necessary renovations, 15 

and 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) has appropriated a 18 

Municipal Matching Grant (MMG) in the amount of $1,075,140 to the City of North Pole for the 19 

rehabilitation of the waste water treatment plant, and  20 

 21 

WHEREAS, the ADEC requires that the City provide a minimum 30 percent matching 22 

contribution of $460,775 which shall be paid from the Utility Department’s existing capital 23 

reserves which as of March 4, 2013 totaled $831,424; and 24 

 25 

WHEREAS, the City agrees it shall operate and maintain the completed project constructed with 26 

said grant;  27 

 28 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the North Pole City Council of the City of 29 

North Pole formally accepts Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation MMG #63323 30 

in the amount of $1,075,140 for the Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project and shall accept the 31 

conditions of the grant agreement.  32 

 33 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this  34 

18
th

 day of March, 2013. 35 

 36 

 37 

       __________________________________ 38 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 39 

 40 

ATTEST: 41 

 42 

______________________________ 43 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 44 

North Pole City Clerk 45 

 46 

PASSED/FAILED 47 

YES: 48 

NO: 49 

ABSENT: 50 


	AG-03-18-13
	Min-03-04-13
	Mayors Communications
	Proclamations
	Ord 13-03 Made in North Pole Trademark z
	Christmas in Ice
	Res 13-06 WWTP resolution to accept MMG #63323

